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NATIONAL ORGANIZATION 
SONS OF UNION VETERANS OF THE CIVIL WAR 

CIVIL WAR MEMORIAL ASSESSMENT FORM 

PLEASE:

Thank You.

Type of Memorial
with Cannon

___

Affiliation

Original Dedication Date 
first 

Location
currently 

Government Body, Agency, or Individual Owner 

Sumner Post 3, Warren Post 54, Fair Oaks Post 120

18 September 1889

1000 Broadway

Sacramento Sacramento

California

City of Sacramento

Old City Cemetery Committee

1000 Broadway

Sacramento CA 95818

916-448-0811

The memorial is in its original location. It has not been moved.

✔

✔

✔
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Physical Details

SUVCW -- CIVIL WAR 

Approximate Dimensions 

Markings/Inscriptions 

Environmental Setting
Type of Location

Granite base with concrete foundation.

White bronze statue, yellow bronze medallion.

Statue is hollow. Medallion is solid cast.

Yellow bronze

(There are no cannons associated with this memorial)

6 ft. 6 ft.

6 ft, 1,5 in.

See attachment for descriptions of markings and inscriptions.

See attachment for full contemporary description of monument.

GAR Plot #1

✔ ✔

✔

✔

✔
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General Vicinity

Immediate Locale 

Condition Information

Structural Condition 
with -

Cannon. 

Sculpture   Base

Surface Appearance 

Sculpture   Base

public. Trees are nearby.

Located in historically designated (not active) cemetery that is open to the

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔
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Surface Coating

Basic Surface Condition Assessment 

Overall Description

Supplemental Background Information

Inspector Identification

 
 

Main goal is to determine if the monument should be re-painted or not. Local legend is that it was painted well after it was dedicated, so it is
possible the original appearance was unpainted metal patina.

17 November 2013

Jon Henry

150 Dawn River Way Folsom

CA 95630

Gen. Wright Camp 22, SUVCW

✔

✔

✔

✔



Images of "Old Eli" statue, photographed by Dean Enderlin, 9 March 2014 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Front View looking East 

 

Right Side View looking South 

 

Rear View looking West 

 

Left Side View looking North 



 

SW Side View looking Northeast 

 

NW View looking Southeast 

 

NE View looking Southwest 

 

SE View looking Northwest 



 

           

 

Statue Front View looking East 

 

Statue Rear View looking West 

 

Statue Left Side View looking North

 

Statue Right Side View looking South



                   

 

Die Front View looking East 

 

Die Right Side View looking North 

 

Die Left Side View looking South 

 

Base and Die Rear View looking West 
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CITY CEMETERY 
Sacramento, California 

PLOT BOOK A • Pages I-82 
PLOT BOOK B Pages 83-164 
or more info top of page l9, consult 
NEW HELVETIA REINTERMENTS book. 

8-132, 3, % 4, Indigents. 
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Source: The California Column, Vol XIII, No. 4, Fall 2014, pages 10-11. 

THE STORY OF OLD ELI 
By Jon Henry, CC 
Gen. George Wright Camp 22 

ocated in the north-cast section of Sacramento's 
historic Old City Cemetery is a plot of nearly 80 
graves and a large monument dedicated to the 

Grand Army of the Republie. The G.A.R. was a 
benevolent organization formed by Civil War veterans 
shortly after the end of the war. The G.A.R.'s mission 
was primarily to provide and advocate for financial 
support for veterans, children and widows of servicemen 
who fought for the Union in the Civil War. At the time, 
there was no federal program or equivalent of the 
modern Veterans Administration. The G.A.R. was 
particularly focused on ensuring proper burials and 
memorials for Union veterans. 

In Sacramento, the G.A.R. was given a plot in the City 
Cemetery in 1887, where they re-interred the remains 
of veterans who were previously buried in two other 
cemeteries. The G.AR. also erected a monument in this 
plot in 1889. 

The monument is comprised of a concrete base 
supporting a granite plinth about 12 feet high, topped 
by a white bronze statue of a Union soldier that stands 
approximately 6 feet in height. The total height of the 
monument is about 220 feet. The front (west) face of the 
monument is inscribed with the words, Erected to the 
memory of our soldier dead," with the letters G. A. R." 
in relief on the bottom section of the plinth. On the north 
side of the plinth is a bronze plaque with a relief portrait 
of General Ulysses S. Grant that is inscribed, "Our 
General U. S. Grant" 
The figure atop the monument--colloquially known as 
Old Eli--is posed in the Parade Rest position with his 
cloak draped over his right shoulder, his musket 
grasped loosely in both hands with the butt resting near 
his right foot. 

HOW THE MONUMENT CAME TO BE 

The Grand Army of the Republic plot was originally 
located in the New Helvetia Cemetery at the corner of 
31st and J streets, in a plot donated to the G.A.R. 

Sumner Post No. 3 by the cemetery owner and 
proprietor, John Wesley Reeves. The plot was duly 
dedicated in 1865. Upon the death of Reeves in 1867, 
and the City's acquisition of the New Helvetia facility, a 
plot of more appreciable size was offered to the G.A.R. in 
the City Cemetery in exchange. The remains of Civil 
War veterans buried at New Helvetia were removed 
and re-interred here. The plot was subsequently walled 
with granite coping in anticipation of a suitable 
monument. 

Several attempts were initiated to secure an appropriate 
monument for the plot, but lack of funding was a 
constant problem. One such effort was to obtain four 
cannons from the Mare Island Naval base and place 
them at the four corners of the plot. The local G.A.R. 
posts were all in hard financial straits at the time, and 
could not raise the necessary funds to transport the 
cannons to Sacramento. In 1886, the G.A.R. posts 
decided on the concept of a bronze memorial statue, and 
established the Grand Army Memorial Fund to support 
the cause. About 881,000 was raised, but this was still 
only about half of what was needed. 



Fortunately for the G.A.R, a parallel memorial 
fundraising effort was underway to create a separate 
monument for Gen. Ulysses S. Grant. This group had 
also raised about $1,000 for their own monument. 
Negotiations between the groups reached an amicable 
compromise: the Grant funds were transferred to the 
G.A.R, and in exchange the G.A.R. agreed to include the 
bronze plaque honoring Gen. Grant on their monument's 
plinth. 

The monument was formally dedicated on September 9, 
1889, in a ceremony conducted by three local chapters 
of the G.AR. The ceremony was a grand affair, which 
was covered extensively by the newspapers of the day. 
Many State and local dignitaries were in attendance, 
along with representatives of several other fraternal 
orders allied with the G.A.R., such as the Ladies Relief 
Corps, The Sons of Union Veterans, and the Ladies' 
Auxiliary of the G.A.. 

The Sacramento Daily 
Bee and the Sacramento 
Daily Union both 
published accounts of the 
dedication ceremony, 
which began with a 12 
block-long parade to the 
cemetery, led by a platoon 

of police and a military 
escort. Also marching in the 
parade, following behind a 
long string of carriages 

carrying dignitaries, was the drum corps of the newly­ 
organized Sons of Union Veterans 

At the cemetery, the ceremony began with a prayer by 
the G.A.R. chaplain, followed by a speech from Superior 
Court Judge W. C Van Fleet, in which ho officially 
turned over the cemetery plot to the 6.A.R. 

The next event in the ceremony was a ritual conducted 
by the veterans, where an honor guard was posted at the 
monument, while a sailor laid an anchor and a cutlass at 
tho south base of the monument, and a soldier laid a 
knapsack, cartridge box and musket at the north base. 

Following this ritual, Judge N. Greene Curtis delivered 
a stirring, hour-long oration that one account stated "no 
brief report can do justice to." 

CURRENT STATE OF THE MONUMENT 

Dedicated 125 years ago, Sacramento is fortunate to 
have "Old Eli" still standing as he was in 1889 at his 
original location. This is far from the usual case with 
similar monuments, and In fact, tho physical condition of 
the monument is overall pretty good, but it is in need of 
some restoration and preservation work. 

The entirety of the Old City Cemetery is now a 
preserved historical site, managed by the City of 
Sacramento. With many prominent historical burials, 
the cemetery is a popular location for school groups and 
tourists alike, and the G.A.R. monument still holds a 
prominent place among the points of interest in the 
cemetery. The G.A.R. plot is maintained by General 
George Wright Camp 22 of Sacramento and the 
monument has featured as the centerpiece for several of 
their recent memorial services and living history events 

Most notably, the SU VCW held an event celebrating the 
150th Anniversary of the Gettysburg Address. The 
event was held on November 19, 2013, the exact day of 
the anniversary, and featured an authentic recreation of 
Lincoln's original speech with well-known Lincoln 
portrayer Wayne Scott in the leading role. Nearly 200 
people showed up for this mid-week event, including 
about 50 school children and several media outlets. 
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Many thanks to DEAN ENDERLIN, POO and 
SEBASTIAN NELSON for their research and for 
providing the original news clippings and on which 
this article is based. Thanks to the Old City Cemetery 
Committee for supporting SUVOW'% work on the 
monument and the G.A.R. plot. And finally, thanks to 
the Brothers of Camp 22 for their enthusiastic work in 
preserving and protecting this valuable piece of Civil 
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THE DEDICATION CEREMONY 

Original report of the 
ceremony (click for full-sized 
image) 
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Description of the Monument, Which the 
Loe G. A Pots LI soon 

tnvell. 

Sacramento Daily Union 
25 August 1889 
Pg. 3, Col. 5 
(DAE 13 February 2014) 

THE MONUMENT. 
The monument will stand on a little 

mound on the east side of tbe G. A. R. 
plot. It is entirely of Folsom white gran­ 
ite, with the exception of the figure which 
surmounts it. This is of white bronze, and 
was sculptured in Chicago. The shaft and 
figure will reach a hight of twenty feet 

i:z2:.r:± ".±ea:?2t 
t inches in hight, and represents s Union 

private standing at "parade rest." 
} On the front side_of the main shaft the 

inscription,'Erected to the memory of our 
, soldier dead," will appear in bold relief, 
«and below it, on the center base, the letters 

'G.A. R." On tbe north side of the sbaft 
} will be s life-size bust medallion of General 
;Grant, beneath which will sppear the in­ 
t scription, 'Our General-U. 8. Grant." On 
«the south side will be a two-foot Grand 
t Army badge, cut into the stone. 

The monument stands on a concrete base 
eir feet eqnare and sir feet deep. The 
whole weighs over twelve tons. 

This will be the first monument erected 
in memory of the Grand Army's dead on 
the Pacific coast, and Sacramento should 

, be proud of it. 
" ----- ----- 

" 
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• AN ELEGANT TRIBUTE TO THE 
PARTED VETERANS. 

On tbe 9th day of nert month, which 
will be the occasion of the thirty-ninth an­ 
niversary of California's admission into 
the Union as a State, the local Grand Army 
of the Republic posts will assemble at the 
headquarters, corner of Tenth and K 
treets, and, beaded by the First Artillery 
Band, will march to the City Cemetery, 
where the ceremony of unveiling the new 
Grand Army Memorial Monument will 
take place. The ceremonies will consist of 
music, prayer andan oration by s prominent 
local speaker, et to be chosen. A salute 
of muskets will be fired and the veteran 
soldiers will retire. 

After several years of perseverance the 
members of tbe local Grand Army Posts 
at last succeeded in placing a fitting " 
tribute over the raves of their 
dead comrades. Some time #go 
it was determined to secure four cannons 
from the Mare Island Navy Yard, which 
had seen service in the late war, these to be 
placed in the four corners of tbeG. A. RR.~ 
plot in the cemetery. But the posts were 
then in poor financial condition, and could 
not get the pieces bere, so the matter fell 
through. A monument was then thought " 
of, and a fund was started for the purpose " 
of eventually erecting ope. This was three e 
years ago. Since that time something over t 
$1,000 was accumulated. This was not t 
enough. A similar amount to tbis was 
lying unused in the Grant Memorial Fund, 
and negotiations were made, and succeeded 
in having this sum transferred to the 
G. A. R. Monument Fand. This com- C 
bined amount--$2,500--was expended for " 
the handsome monument, a cut of which is[ 
here given: 



Sacramento Daily Union 
10 September 1889 
Pg. 2, Col. 4 
(DAE 13 September 2014) 

UFYEILED. 

THE SHROUD TORN ASIDE AND A .,a. I 
MORIAL EXPOSED TO VIEW. 

The first Grand Army Monument 
in California A Deerpt lo 

of the Ceremonies, 

The first monument dedicated to tbe 
Grand Army of the Bepublic in California 
was unveiled in the City Cemetery ester­ 
day afternoon with impressive ceremonies_ 

The members of the various local posts 
gathered at the Grand Army headquarters, 
corner of Tenth and streets, and the pro­ 
cession started sore time after 3 o'clock. It 
was headed by a platoon of police, behind 
whom came the First Artillery band, and a 
military escort under command of Captain 
T. B. Hall. Then came the officers of the 
day in carriages, accompanied by State, 
county and city officials and invited guests. 
The Sons of Veterans and their drum 
corps came next, and tbey were followed 
by a large contingent of tbe Society of Pio-. 
neers, in charge of P. S. Lawson, President 
of the society. The local posts of the 6. 
A .acted as an escort to tbe Pioneers, 
The ladies ot Fair Oaks ad Sumner Re­ 
lief Corps, and tbe ladies ot tbe G. A. R. 
concluded tbe line, occupying carriages. 

Grand Marsbal C. H. Hubbard bundled 
tbe procession admirably, and was ably as­ 
sisted by George W. Ficks. The line of 
march was directly out Tenth street to the 
cemetery. 

Upon reaching the cemetery the dedics­ 
tory exercises were at once proceeded with, 
opening with a prayer by the chaplain, 
Re. W. C. Merrill. 

Superior Judge W, C. Van Fieet tben 
turned the monument over to the old 
veterans on behalf of the citizens of Ser­ 
mento. He suid: 

The occasion which bas caused us to tssem­ 
ble bere to day is one ot mingled piesurs and 
te. Flesure in cnemphatiug our note 

immediate purpose, et infinitely sad in the 
memories and reflections that are «wakened. A?aEeeParara.zzz 
savage, fidelity to country has ever been and 
ever shalt be regarded s the highest and nob­ 
lest attn1bate of man, Deeds ot valor and of 
ri~ice in defense of the common country 

have ever been tbe surest pt hwy Io# people 
gratitude and s people' honor, It is to this 
attribute and such eeds that we are here to 
pay just tribute of repect and devotion. 

It is not necessary that I should dwell upon 
those facts to pregnant with the immortal bis­ 
tory of our country, which have resulted in 
king our present purpose appropriate, ce 

mnerory peaks to us ins log age far ore 
eloquent tban words, Memory that hs been 
perishably recorded in the blood of iored 

and honored ones and which tads a rerpoasfve 
echo at every hearthstone. It is sutlieiept for z::ere.±:; 
tbe pleasant fireside of pence and 
taking up the sword, cotsectaed their 
lives to the serviee of their country. we, es 
a nation, owe a debt of gratitude which it can 
never be ours wholly to repay, It is this tenti­ 
met actuatipg the great bieart of this people 
that is to find appropriate expression here to- tu..z:are::.zzz:...as:: 
commemorate those glorious events which bare 
preserved our country to a great and happy fu­ C-.E.:±EE? A.ER::: 
ible. And to son, Commander and comrades 
of summer lost, as living representative ot tbt 
grand army whose me ry we desire to honor 
nd perpetuate, is most fittingly to be confided 
this sacred trust. .:EE:a.:z.Er z:gr«.2z2.z.et: Tar::#.:.a:te 
ory and affection, tot alone ns a tribute to our 
comrades desd, but s an earnest of that patri­ 
otic sentiment of gratitude which bas a place in 
he heart of every lover of the Union, toward all 
those who bared their breast in the cause of 
human liberty and eternal right. I pow sur­ 
render this memorial to your keeping. 

J.W. Reeves, Senior Post Commander 
accepted tbe monument in the name of the 
Grand Army of the Republic in a few 
well-chosen words. 

Then followed the ritual services by the 
veterans attending the dedication. A guard 
of honor was stationed at each corner of 
the monument and a sailor, representing 
the pay, solemnly placed an anchor and a 
cutlass at the south base of the monument, 
while a soldier, representing tbe infantry, 
laid s musket, cartridge-box and knapsack 
at the north base. 

Judge N. Greene Cartis was tben intro­ 
duced, and spoke abut an hour, His ora­ 
tion, which was frequently interrupted by 
bursts of applause, was a steriy «tfort, 
and perhaps one of the best of his life. 
The Judge, in referring to tbe occasion 
which bad brongbt so many people to­ 
getber, said in substance; I'e have as­ 
sembled for the purpose of dedicating a 
monument to the memory of our soldier 
dead. Tody we stand in the presence of 
the war-worn veterans who foght in that 
great oontlet tor tbe perpetuation of tbe 
American Union. ye also stand in 
reverent manner, with bed heads in 
another presence -the presence of the 
soldier dead, who bave thrown off 
the habiliments et war, ad have 
answered the last roll call, Above 
their sered dust stands this granite pile 
which we nw, on tbis beautiful day, be­ 
neath the bur canopy of heaven, unveil to 
their memory. No political discord dis­ 
turbs our horizon. We are to-dy, thank 
God, moving down the stream of time a 
prosperons nd hsppy people united by in­ 
dissoluble bonds. It has cost something to 
make tbis conntry wbast it is to-day, Tbe 
strtale of our forefathers for independence 
was an undertakiae such as only heroes 
conld enlist in Lexington, Concord, 
Banker Hill and Yorktown were the step­ 
ping·sones to a new ens which forever 
solved the great problem of self govern­ 
meat by the people and for the people. Our 
Constitution, which has been nr guiding 
star throngh a hundred and thirteen years of 
our nationsi existence. was framed by the 
greatest minds tbat the world ever pro­ 
duced. Fader it we hare been guided to 
the present bour, though during tbat 
period we bare pused through an interpsl 
conflict which cost this ration her best 
blood and millions of treasure. Brother 
met brother on tbe field ot battle. That 
grand old tlag passed through ll and not a 
ingle star dimmed. The cost was fearful 
to behold. Yet I believe that under tbe 
guidance of a Divine Providence we have 
came forth purged by the fires of civil 
war, more closelr cemented for tbe perpetu­ 
ation of our beloved country for all time 
than ever before. I tbis work of to-day 
an idie ceremony? We answer, No. Tbat 

mnonnuent marks a chapter in the nation's 
history that never will be repeated. 

Jude Curtis after paring lowing trib­ 
ute to the merors ot General Grant for 
his mgnsnimonus net at Appomatox to 
General Le and bis soldiers, closed wn ad­ 
dress which no brief report can do justice to, 




